A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

Petitioner, JOEL MCANINCH, by and through his attomey, 

CATHERINE E. GLINSKI, requests the relief designated in part B. 

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Petitioner seeks review of the August 18, 2015, published decision 

of Division Two of the Court of Appeals affirming the denial of his 

motion for a new trial. 

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. McAninch pled guilty to felony DUI in March 2013. The 

sentencing statute in effect at that time limited prior offenses which can be 

included in the offender score for a conviction of felony DUI to "felony 

driving while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or any dmg, felony 

physical control of a vehicle while under the influence of intoxicating 

liquor or any dmg, and serious traffic offenses[.]" Former RCW 

9.94A.525(2)(e). Where the sentencing court included McAninch's prior 

conviction for attempt to elude in his offender score, is he entitled to relief 

from the excessive sentence? 

2. McAninch seeks review of the assertions of error in his 

statement of additional grounds for review. 



D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On March 7, 2013, Joel McAninch pled guilty to felony driving 

under the influence and three gross misdemeanors. CP 9-19. He was 

sentenced on March 12, 2013. CP 21-35. The sentencing court calculated 

his offender score on the felony driving under the influence conviction as 

6, which included one point for a 2004 attempt to elude, one point for a 

2011 felony driving under the influence, three points for driving under the 

influence convictions from 2004, 2007, and 2009, and one point for being 

on community custody at the time of the current offense. CP 23-24, 60. 

The court sentenced McAninch to 54 months, the top of the standard range 

based on an offender score of 6. CP 24, 27. 

On January 23, 2014, McAninch filed a motion for relief from 

judgment under CrR 7.8{b){5), arguing that the trial court miscalculated 

his offender score. CP 36-54. Specifically, McAninch argued that the 

court erred in including his 2004 attempt to elude conviction in the 

offender score because attempt to elude does not fall within the class of 

prior offenses for felony driving under the influence specified in Former 

RCW 9.94A.525(2)(e). He challenged the active community custody 

point on the same basis. CP 48-54. 

Following a hearing on McAninch's motion, the Honorable 

Marilyn Haan concluded there was no legal basis to change McAninch's 
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sentence. The court denied the motion for relief. CP 60-63. McAninch 

appealed, and the Court of Appeals affirmed. 

E. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE GRANTED 

1. THE COURT OF APPEALS'S DECISION CONFLICTS 
WITH OTHER DECISIONS OF THE COURT OF 
APPEALS. RAP 13.4(b)(2). 

Upon timely motion, the com1 may relieve a pa11y from a final 

judgment to conect mistakes in obtaining the judgment, when the 

judgment is void, or for any other reason justifying relief from the 

judgment. CrR 7.8(b}. The trial court's ruling on a CrR 7.8 motion is 

reviewed for abuse of discretion. State v. Gomez-Florencio, 88 Wn. App. 

254, 258, 945 P.2d 228 (1997), review denied, 134 Wn.2d 1026 (1998). A 

trial court abuses its discretion when it exercises discretion in a manner 

that is manifestly umeasonable or based upon untenable grounds. State v. 

Neal, 144 Wn.2d 600, 609, 30 P.3d 1255 {2001 ). In this case, the lower 

com1 abused its discretion when it denied McAninch's CrR 7.8 motion 

because there is a legal basis for changing his sentence. 

McAninch challenged the judgment and sentence on the basis that 

his offender score was miscalculated. To be valid, sentences must fall 

within the proper presumptive sentencing ranges set by the legislature. 

State v. Williams, 149 Wn.2d 143, 146, 65 P.3d 1214 (2003). A 

sentencing court acts without statutory authority when it imposes a 
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sentence based on a miscalculated offender score. Moreover, a sentence 

based on a miscalculated offender score is a fundamental defect that 

inherently results in a miscarriage of justice. This is true even where the 

sentence is pa11 of a negotiated plea bargain, because a plea bargain 

agreement cannot exceed the statutory authority given to the courts. In re 

Goodwin, 146 Wn.2d 861,873-74,50 P.3d 618 (2002). 

McAninch was convicted of felony driving while under the 

influence of intoxicants and sentenced on March 3, 2013. CP 21-35; 

RCW 46.46.61.502( 6). The sentencing statute in existence at that time 

provided as follows: 

(e) If the present conviction is felony driving while under the 
influence of intoxicating liquor or any dmg (RCW 46.61.502(6)) 
or felony physical control of a vehicle while under the influence of 
intoxicating liquor or any dmg (RCW 46.61.504(6)), prior 
convictions of felony driving while under the influence of 
intoxicating liquor or any drug, felony physical control of a vehicle 
while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or any drug, and 
serious traffic offenses shall be included in the offender score if: { i) 
The prior convictions were committed within five years since the 
last date of release from confinement {including full-time 
residential treatment) or entry of judgment and sentence; or { ii) the 
prior convictions would be considered "prior offenses within ten 
years'' as defined in RCW 46.61.5055. 

Fonner RCW 9.94A.525{2){e){2011 ). 

Both Division One and Division Two have previously interpreted 

this statute strictly, holding that the statute limited the prior convictions 

that could be included in the offender score for this offense to "felony 
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driving while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or any dmg, felony 

physical control of a vehicle while under the influence of intoxicating 

liquor or any dmg, and serious traffic offenses ... :· State v. Jacob, 176 Wn. 

App. 351, 357-58, 308 P.3d 800 (2013); State v. Morales, 168 Wn. App. 

489, 493, 498, 278 P.3d 668 (2012). ''Serious traffic offense" is defined 

by statute to mean ''Nonfe1ony driving while under the influence of 

intoxicating liquor or any drug (RCW 46.61.502 ), nonfelony actual 

physical control while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or any 

drug (RCW 46.61.504), reckless driving (RCW 46.61.500), or hit-and-run 

an attended vehicle (RCW 46.52.020(5)) ... " RCW 9.94A.030(44) 

(formerly RCW 9.94A.030(43)). 

In Morales, Division One held that when calculating the 

defendant's offender score for felony DUI, the only relevant prior offenses 

are those listed in subsection (2)(e) of the statute. Morales, 168 Wn. App. 

at 497. Thus, the Court held that use of the defendant's assault conviction 

in his offender score was error because assault is not one of the statutorily 

specified prior convictions that qualify for scoring. Morales, 168 Wn. 

App. at 497-98 1
• Division Two followed Morales in Jacob, holding that 

1 The statute was amended. eftcctivc September 2013. to read as follows: 

If the present conviction is felony driving while under the influence of 
intoxicating liquor or any drug (RCW 46.61.502(6)) or tclony physical control 
of a vehicle while under the int1ucncc of intoxicating liquor or any drug (RCW 
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the defendant's dmg conviction should not have been included in his 

offender score because dmg convictions are not among the statutorily 

specified prior convictions for offender score inclusion. Jacob, 176 Wn. 

App. at 360. 

Under Morales and Jacob, the sentencing court erred in including 

McAninch's 2004 conviction for attempting to elude in his offender score, 

because that offense is not one of the statutorily specified prior offenses 

for offender score inclusion. The Court of Appeals rejected this strict 

interpretation of the statutory language, however. Instead, it adopted the 

reasoning of Division Three in State v. Hemandez, 185 W n. App. 680, 

342 P.3d 820 (2015), and held that when read in conjunction with other 

provisions of the statute, former RCW 9.94A.525(2)(e) permits inclusion 

of McAninch's attempt to elude conviction. Slip Op. at 8. The Court of 

Appeals's decision conflicts with the decisions in Morales and Jacob, and 

this Court should grant review to resolve the conflict. 

46.61.504(6)). all pn:dicatc crimes for the ofl:cnsc as defined by RCW 
46.61.5055(14) shall be included in the offender score. and prior convictions for 
felony driving while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or any drug 
(RCW 46.61.502(6)) or felony physical control of a vehicle while under the 
inf1uence of intoxicating liquor or any drug (RCW 46.61.504(6)) shall always be 
included in the offender score. All other convictions of the defendant shall be 
scored according to this section. 

RCW 9.94A.252(2)(e). McAninch was sentenced in March 2013. before this amendment 
went into efl:cct. The amendment cannot be applied retrospectively because it 
contravenes a construction placed on the original statute by the judiciary. State v. 
Dunaway, 109 Wn.2d 207.216. n.6, 743 P.2d 1237 (19R7): Johnson v. Morris. R7 Wn.2d 
922, 925-26, 557 P.2d 1299 (1976). 
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2. McANINCH'S ASSERTIONS OF ERROR IN HIS 
STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL GROUNDS FOR 
REVIEW SHOULD BE REVIEWED BY THIS COURT. 

McAninch filed a statement of additional grounds for review. 

which the Cout1 of Appeals rejected as meritless. He asks this Court to 

grant review on those grounds and reverse the denial of his motion for a 

new trial. 

F. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons discussed above. this Court should grant review 

and reverse the Court of Appeals's decision.