RECEIVED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
Oct 15, 2015, 3:21 pm
BY RONALD R. CARPENTER
CLERK

RECEIVED BY E-MAIL

NO. 92263-2 COA NO. 46072-6-II CONSOL W/ 46668-6-II Cowlitz Co. Cause NO. 13-1-00063-3

SUPREME COURT OF STATE OF WASHINGTON

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

v.

JOEL D. MCANINCH,

Appellant/Petitioner.

RESPONSE TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

RYAN JURVAKAINEN
Prosecuting Attorney
AILA WALLACE/WSBA 46898
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney
Representing Respondent

HALL OF JUSTICE 312 SW FIRST KELSO, WA 98626 (360) 577-3080

I. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT

The State of Washington, by and through the Cowlitz County
Prosecuting Attorney's Office, respectfully requests this Court deny
review of the August 18, 2015, published opinion of the Court of Appeals
in *State v. McAninch*, COA No. 46072-6-II. This decision upheld the trial
court's order denying relief under CrR 7.8 and denied McAninch's
personal restraint petition.

II. ANSWER TO ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

The Court of Appeals properly held that the trial court did not abuse its discretion in denying McAninch's motion for relief from judgment, as his offender score was correctly calculated as six, including a point for a 2004 conviction for attempting to elude.

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The State agrees with the Statement of the Case given in McAninch's petition.

IV. ARGUMENT

The decision of Decision Two of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with Division One, but in agreement with Division Three. Because there is a conflict among the divisions, the Supreme Court should accept the petition for review.

RAP 13.4(b) states that a petition for review will only be accepted by the Supreme Court only if one of four conditions are met: (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of another division of the Court of Appeals; or (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court. The decision of the Court of Appeals in this case is in conflict with Division One's decision in *State v. Morales*, 168 Wn. App. 489, 498, 278 P.3d 668 (2012). However, the decision in this case aligns with Division Three's decision in *State v. Hernandez*, 185 Wn. App. 680, 342 P.3d 820 (2015).

In *Morales*, Division One held that the only relevant offenses in calculating an offender score for felony DUI are those listed in former RCW 9.94A.525(2)(e). 168 Wn. App. at 493. Division Two originally relied on *Morales* to find that RCW 9.9A.525(2) should be strictly

interpreted to specify a limited class of prior offenses to be used in offender score calculations. *State v. Jacob*, 176 Wn. App. 351, 357, 308 P.3d 800 (2013). However, Division Three then noted that *Morales* and *Jacob* overlook portions of RCW 9.94A.525 and the overall purpose of the statute. *Hernandez*, 185 Wn. App. at 686. That Division held that all of the defendant's prior offenses were properly included, as former subsection (2)(e) acts as an exception to the wash out provision in subsections (2)(c) and (d). *Id*. In other words, subsection (2)(e) does not *exclude* any prior convictions; rather, it expands the categories of prior convictions that can be included if the present conviction is for felony Driving under the Influence, while also allowing those prior convictions to "wash out" after five crime-free years in the community.

Neither *Jacob* nor *Morales* mention RCW 9.9A.525(11), and the decisions in those cases read Section 2 in such a way as to render Section 11 meaningless. If the only prior convictions that can be considered for purposes of calculating an offender score are those enumerated in Section 2(e) – DUI, physical control, and serious traffic offenses – then the part of Section 11 that includes a point for "each felony offense" is meaningless. This is an inappropriate reading of the SRA. It was proper for Division Two to decline to follow those cases and instead follow Division Three's

holding in *Hernandez*. However, this creates a split in divisions that the Supreme Court may properly review.

V. CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, Petitioner's petition for discretionary review should be granted.